Commonwealth of Massachusetts Town of Shutesbury

Annual Town Meeting Minutes June 27, 2020

With Covid-19 pandemic safety measures in place, Shutesbury held its Annual Town Meeting and Elections under tents in the field behind Town Hall at 1 Cooleyville Rd., on Saturday, June 27, 2020. The overcast skies gave way to a gentle rain and at a legal meeting of the inhabitants qualified to vote in elections and town affairs, in the presence of a hardy quorum, the town's business was conducted.

Moderator Paul Lyons opened the meeting at 9:20 AM. He acknowledged the many difficulties and losses people have faced due to the Covid-19 virus. He thanked the volunteers who worked to set up the meeting and reiterated the safety measures that would help make the town meeting a success.

Moderator Lyons greeted the new residents attending open town meeting for the first time. He introduced the public officials, and framed the tasks of town meeting – passing a budget, make or amend bylaws, and vote on matters presented to the town. In order to speed up the meeting this year, some articles will be voted on in a group instead of individually. Anyone can ask that an article be considered individually, if desired.

After retiring officials were thanked and a few more announcements were made, the meeting began.

A motion was made by Moderator Lyons for permission to call for vote by a show of hands (cards) on articles requiring a 2/3 vote to pass. If the vote appears close, he will ask for a vote by counting the raised cards. The motion was seconded.

**Motion passed by greater than 2/3 majority.

Article 1. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to hear, and receive reports of town officers, committees, and boards.

Due to the safety concerns for a short meeting, written reports were posted on the Select Board webpage on the town website. No reports were given in person at town meeting. **See reports in Appendix A**

**Article 1 passed unanimously.

Article 2. A motion was made and seconded that the Town will vote to amend Section VI of the Amherst Pelham Regional School District Agreement by adding subsection (j) as follows: For Fiscal Year 2021 only, the alternative operating budget assessment shall be calculated as 45% of a five-year average of minimum contributions with the remainder of the assessment allocated to the member towns in accordance with the per-pupil method found in Section VI (e) of the Amherst

Pelham Regional School District Agreement. The five-year average of minimum contributions will include the five most recent years.

**Article 2 passed by majority.

Article 3. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to set the salary compensation for all elected officials of the town (Select Board, Town Clerk, Moderator and Constable) as provided by MGL Chapter 41, Section 108, to be made effective from July 1, 2020, as contained in the budget, or take any other action relative thereto.

**Article 3 passed unanimously.

Article 4. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to approve the **Citizens Petition** as written:

-Shutesbury has about 2.4 million dollars in combined Free Cash, Stabilization and Capital Stabilization funds.

-On May 2, 2015 Shutesbury voters agreed to appropriate a sum of money not to exceed \$1,693,200.00 for the town's share of the costs of the construction, installation and start-up of a regional broadband network.

-On June 10, 2015 Shutesbury voters authorized a debt exclusion of \$1,693,200.00 for the broadband network.

-This debt exclusion will be an additional tax burden on top of the annual property tax burden levied on each property owner.

-It is estimated the cost of borrowing \$1,693,200.00 over twenty years will be \$500,000.00. Reducing the initial loan amount will save Shutesbury a significant amount of money.

-A smaller initial loan amount will mean a reduced tax bill for each taxpayer.

-A smaller initial loan amount will mean a potentially smaller monthly broadband bill.

-In light of the Town's cash on hand, the potential to save a significant amount in loan expenses, reduce individual tax bills and broadband costs, we the undersigned move that \$750,000.00 be transferred from any combination of Free Cash, Stabilization, and Capital Stabilization funds to pay down the \$1,693,200.00 debt exclusion for broadband.

**Article 4 postponed indefinitely by unanimous vote.

Article 5. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to transfer a sum of money, not to exceed \$12,000, from the Assessors Overlay Surplus account to the Assessors Revaluation account.

**Article 5 passed by majority.

Article 6. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to transfer \$15,000 from Free Cash to the Shutesbury Unemployment Compensation Fund, established in 2018 at the Annual Town Meeting.

**Article 6 passed by majority.

Articles 7-10. A motion was made and seconded that the Town approve Article 7, by returning \$20,028.08 from the Wyola Dam Project account to Stabilization; Article 8, by returning \$12,400 from the Alternative Energy Account to Stabilization; Article 9, by returning \$24,016.16 from the Hazardous Waste Clean Up account to Free Cash;. Article 10, by returning \$24,200 from the School Sidewalk Repair account to Free Cash.

A request was made to "Hold" Article 10 from the Consent Agenda, and consider it separately

**Articles 7– 9 passed unanimously.

Article 10. A motion was made and seconded that the return \$24,200 from the School Sidewalk Repair account to Free Cash.

******Article 10 failed to get a majority vote.

Annual Budget Article

Article 11. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to provide a sum of money to meet town expenses including operations, capital, salaries and school expenses of **\$6,600,665** by raising the sum of **\$6,103,883, transferring \$476,367 from free cash,** and transferring \$20,425 from the Septic Betterment Fund, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020, or take any other action relative thereto.

The Co-Chair of the Finance Committee, Eric Stocker, explained the key elements in the proposed budget: a .14% increase in costs to maintain level services and use of cash reserves to a lower the tax rate and meet anticipated state funding cuts. The minority opinion was presented by Bob Groves and Jim Hemingway, members of the Finance Committee. To respond to economic stress incurred during these Covid-19 times and to lower the taxes in Shutesbury, Groves outlined a list of position cuts, allocation from free cash, deferred repairs, transfer of revenue, delayed OPEB funding, and elimination of debt service. Motions were made and seconded for amendments on five line-items in the budget; all amendments failed.

**Article 11 passed by majority.

Article 12 and 13. A motion was made and seconded that the Town approve Articles 12 and 13, as written in the Warrant, except for the words 'or take any other action relative thereto.

Article 12. To see if the Town of Shutesbury will vote to act on the recommendation of the Community Preservation Committee on the fiscal year 2021 budget to transfer the following sums of money from the Community Preservation Fund estimated annual revenues: **\$5,100** to Open Space; **\$5,100** to Historic Resources; **\$5,100** to-Community Housing; and **\$32,000** to the FY21 Community Preservation Fund budgeted reserve.

Article 13. To see if the Town of Shutesbury will vote to appropriate **\$2,500** from fiscal year 2021 Community Preservation Fund estimated annual revenues for necessary and proper administrative and operation expenses of the Shutesbury Community Preservation Committee.

** Articles 12 and 13 passed unanimously.

CPC request from Amherst-Pelham Regional School District

Article 14. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to appropriate **\$13,800** from the Open Space/Recreation Fund balance for a schematic design and engineering study for the Amherst Regional School Track and Field restoration/reconstruction project, or take any other action relative thereto.

** Article 14: Due to Covid-19 this project is delayed and the article was withdrawn.

Proposed Solar Bylaw

Article 15. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to strike section 8.10 of the Town of Shutesbury Zoning Bylaw and replace it with the following new section 8.10 or take any other action related thereto.

SECTION 8.10 GROUND-MOUNTED SOLAR ELECTRIC INSTALLATIONS (ADDED) 2016, Version 3/4/20

8.10-1 Purpose

The purpose of this bylaw is to facilitate and appropriately regulate the creation of Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations: (a) by providing standards for the approval, placement, design, construction, operation, monitoring, modification and removal of such installations that address public safety, protection and preservation of Town infrastructure (including roads), public nuisance, existing residential property and property value, impacts upon environmental, scenic, and historic resources; (b) by providing adequate financial assurance for the eventual decommissioning of such installations; and (c) by protecting large contiguous blocks of forest back-land based on the understanding that large unfragmented tracts provide many ecological benefits including improved water and air quality, sequestration of carbon, reduced movement of invasive species, provision of wildlife habitat and the support for greater biodiversity; as well as maintaining commercial forestry as a viable agricultural activity and providing many recreational opportunities for town residents.

8.10-2 Applicability

- A. This Section 8.10 applies to Large- Scale and Small-Scale Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations, as noted. Small-Scale Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations which are accessory to an existing residential or non-residential use which generate electricity principally used by such residential or non-residential use are permitted as of right, do not need to comply with this Section, but require a Site Plan Review from the Zoning Board of Appeals, as well as a building permit, and must comply with all other applicable provisions of the Town of Shutesbury Zoning Bylaw.
- B. This Section 8.10 also pertains to physical modifications that materially alter the type, configuration, or size of Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations or related equipment.
- C. Upon written request by the applicant, the Planning Board may waive or reduce any special permit requirement of this Section 8.10 by the same majority vote required for the permit itself upon written findings included in the permit of:
 - 1. special circumstances of the site, its surroundings, or the proposal that negate the need for imposition of the requirement, or the objectives of this section may be met in alternative manner; and
 - 2. that such a waiver or reduction will not derogate from the public purposes and intent of this zoning bylaw.

In the case of a special permit, such requests must be made by the applicant no later than the close of the public hearing. An affirmative or negative vote under this paragraph shall not be construed as an approval or disapproval of the permit sought.

8.10-3 General Requirements

A. Compliance with Laws, Bylaws, and Regulations

The construction and operation of all Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations shall be consistent with all applicable local, state and federal requirements, including but not limited to all applicable safety, construction, electrical, and communications requirements. All buildings and fixtures forming part thereof shall be constructed in accordance with the Massachusetts State Building Code.

B. Mitigation for Loss of Carbon Sequestration and Forest Habitat

If forestland is proposed to be converted to a Ground-Mounted Solar Installation the plans shall designate thereon an area of unprotected (meaning, not subject to MGL. Ch. 184, §s 31-33 at time of application) land on the same lot and of a size equal to four times (4X) the total area of such installation. Such designated land shall remain in substantially its natural condition without alteration, including prohibition of commercial forestry/tree cutting not related to the maintenance of the installation, until such time as the installation is decommissioned; except in response to a natural occurrence, invasive species or disease that impacts the trees and requires cutting to preserve the health of the forest. The Special Permit may be conditioned to effectuate and make enforceable this requirement.

C. Mitigation for Loss of Forest Habitat within the Installation

If forestland is proposed to be converted to a Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation the plans shall show mitigation measures that create a wildflower meadow habitat within and immediately around the Solar Electric System and a successional forest habitat in the surrounding areas managed to prevent shading until such time as the installation is decommissioned. The wildflower meadow shall contain a wide variety of plants that bloom from early spring into late fall, that are planted in clumps rather than single plants to help pollinators find them, that are native plants adapted to local climate, soil and native pollinators. At least 50% of the array footprint and perimeter shall be planned to have these flowering plants. Mowing shall be limited to no more than once annually. Plans for pollinator-friendly vegetation establishment and maintenance at the solar PV facility shall be compiled and written by a professional biologist or ecologist with relevant experience and expertise in pollinator habitat creation, grassland habitat restoration, and/or knowledge of native New England plant communities. The Special Permit may be conditioned to effectuate and make enforceable this requirement.

D. Mitigation for Installation of Perimeter Fencing

Any perimeter fencing within winter sight of a public roadway, driveway, or dwelling existing at the time of the special permit application shall be entirely black in color. The Special Permit may be conditioned to effectuate and make enforceable this requirement.

E. Mitigation for Disruption of Trail Networks

If existing trail networks, old Town roads, or woods or cart roads are disrupted by the location of the Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation, the plans shall show alternative trail alignments to be constructed by the applicant. The Special Permit may be conditioned to effectuate and make enforceable this requirement, although no rights of public access may be established hereunder.

F. Mitigation for Disruption of Historic Resources and Properties

Historic resources and properties, such as cellar holes, farmsteads, stone corrals, marked graves, water wells, or pre-Columbian features, including those listed on the Massachusetts Register of Historic Places or as defined by the National Historic Preservation Act, shall be excluded from the areas proposed to be developed, including clearing for shade management. A written assessment of the project's effects on each identified historic resource or property and ways to avoid, minimize or mitigate any adverse effects shall be submitted as part of the Special Permit. A suitable buffer area shall be established on all sides of each historic resource. The Special Permit may be conditioned to effectuate and make enforceable this requirement.

- G. All plans and maps shall be prepared, stamped and signed by a Professional Civil Engineer licensed to practice in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.
- H. Construction access shall be from paved (bituminous or chip-sealed) Town roads. In the alternative, an applicant may propose, at their expense and to Town specifications and based

on the Town's cost estimate, to fund the paving and improvement of drainage facilities to those portions of the Town road required to-meet the intent of this section as determined by the Planning Board. The applicant may also propose posting a bond sufficient to fund the maintenance, repair, and restoration to the satisfaction of the Highway Department and the Select Board, of an unpaved Town road and associated drainage facilities used for construction access. The Planning Board, after consultation with the Shutesbury Highway Department and only following written Select Board approval of an alternative proposal, may accept or deny such alternative proposals.

The Planning Board made a motion and it was seconded to amend 8.10-3 H as follows:

H. Vehicular access for the purpose of construction shall be from paved (bituminous or chipsealed) Town roads. Any proposed waiver o this section under 8.10-2,C. shall be transmitted to the Shutesbury Highway Department and Selectboard with 35 days allowed for comment. No such waiver request shall be approved by the Planning 'Board without written concurrence from the Selectboard.

Amendment for 8.10-3 H passed by majority.

- I. Lots for Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations shall have the required frontage on a public way stated in Section 4.2-1 and defined in this zoning bylaw.
- J. In order to preserve the ecological integrity of Shutesbury's large blocks of undeveloped forestland as stated in Section 5.1-1 herein, no more than one Large Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation shall be permitted within the bounds of any set of public ways and/or Town borders as depicted on the map entitled Large Ground Mounted Solar Electric Installation Districts, and incorporated into this zoning bylaw.

8.10-4 Required Documents

The project applicant shall provide the following documents in addition to or in coordination with those required under Article IX below.

A. Site Plan. A Site Plan additionally showing:

- 1. Locations of wetlands and Priority Habitat Areas as defined by the Natural Heritage & Endangered Species Program (NHESP).
- 2. Locations of local or National Historic Districts.
- 3. Locations of all known, mapped or suspected Native American archaeological sites or sites of Native American ceremonial activity. Identification of such sites shall be based on responses, if any, to written inquiries with a requirement to respond within 35 days, to the following parties: all federally or state recognized Tribal Historic Preservation Officers with any cultural or land affiliation to the Shutesbury area; the Massachusetts State Historical Preservation Officer; tribes or associations of tribes not recognized by the federal or state government with any cultural or land affiliation to the Shutesbury area; and the Shutesbury

Historical Commission. Such inquiries shall serve as a notice to the aforesaid parties and shall contain a plan of the project, specific identification of the location of the project, and a statement that permitting for the project is forthcoming. Accompanying the site plan shall be a report documenting such inquiries, the responses from the parties, a description of the location and characteristics, including photographs, of any Native American sites and the outcomes of any additional inquires made based on information obtained from or recommendations made by the aforesaid parties. A failure of parties to respond within 35 days shall allow the applicant to submit the site plans.

- 4. The project proponent must submit a full report of all materials to be used, including but not limited to the use of cleaning products, paints or coatings, hydro-seeding, fertilizers, and soil additives. When available, Material Safety Data Sheets will be provided.
- B. Blueprints. Blueprints or drawings of the installation signed by a Professional Engineer licensed to practice in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, showing:
 - 1. The proposed layout of the system and any potential shading from nearby structures.
 - One- or three-line electrical diagram detailing the Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation, associated components, and electrical interconnection methods, with all Massachusetts and National Electrical Code compliant disconnects and overcurrent devices.
- C. General Documentation. The following information shall also be provided:
 - A list of any listed hazardous or known carcinogenic materials proposed to be located on the site in excess of household quantities and a plan to prevent their release to the environment as appropriate.
 - 2. Name, address, and contact information for proposed system installer.
 - 3. The name, contact information and signature of any agents representing the project applicant.
- D. Site Control

The project applicant shall submit documentation of actual or prospective access and control of the project site sufficient to allow for construction and operation of the proposed Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation.

E. Operation and Maintenance Plan

The project applicant shall submit a plan for the operation and maintenance of the Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation, which shall include measures for maintaining safe access to the installation, stormwater management (consistent with DEP's and, where appropriate, Shutesbury's stormwater regulations and vegetation controls), as well as general procedures for operational maintenance of the installation.

F. Financial Surety

Applicants for Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations shall provide a form of surety, either

through an escrow account, bond or otherwise, accessible to the Town of Shutesbury. to cover the cost of removal in the event the Town must remove the installation and remediate the site to its natural preexisting condition, in an amount and form determined to be reasonable by the SPGA, but in no event to exceed more than 125 percent of the cost of removal and compliance with the additional requirements set forth herein. The project applicant shall submit a fully inclusive estimate of the costs associated with removal, prepared by a qualified engineer. The amount shall include a mechanism for calculating increased removal costs due to inflation.

G. Utility Notification

No Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation shall be constructed, nor building permit issued until evidence has been provided to the Planning Board that the utility company that operates the electrical grid where the installation is to be located has approved the solar electric installation owner or operator's intent to install an interconnected customer-owned generator and that the utility has approved connection of the proposed generator into their power grid. Off-grid systems shall be exempt from this requirement.

H. Proof of Liability Insurance

8.10-5 Dimensional Requirements

- A. Minimum setbacks for all Large-Scale Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations shall be:
 - Front street setback: 500 feet (as required for Forest Conservation District)
 - Property line setback: 100 feet
- B. Minimum setbacks for all Small-Scale Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations shall be:
 - Front street setback: 100 feet
 - Property line setback: 50 feet
- C. Required setback areas shall not be counted toward a facility's total acreage.

8.10-6 Design and Performance Standards

A. Lighting

Large- and Small-Scale Solar Electric Installations shall have no permanently-affixed exterior lighting.

- B. Signage
 - 1. Sufficient signage shall be provided to identify the owner of the facility and provide a 24hour emergency contact phone number.
 - 2. Signage at the perimeter warning pedestrians is allowable.
 - 3. Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations shall not be used for displaying any advertising except for reasonable identification of the manufacturer or operator of such installation.

C. Control of Vegetation

Herbicides or pesticides may not be used to control vegetation or animals at a Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation.

- D. Visual Impacts
 - 1. Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation shall be designed to minimize visual impacts including preserving natural vegetation to the maximum extent possible, blending in equipment with the surroundings, and adding vegetative buffers to provide an effective visual barrier from adjacent roads and driveways, and to screen abutting residential dwellings.
 - 2. When possible, a diversity of plant species shall be used, with a preference for species native to New England.
 - 3. Use of exotic plants, as identified by the most recent copy of the "Massachusetts Prohibited Plant List" maintained by the Massachusetts Department of Agricultural Resources, is prohibited.
 - 4. If deemed necessary by the Planning Board, the depth of the vegetative screen shall be 30 feet and will be composed of native trees and shrubs staggered for height and density that shall be properly maintained.
 - 5. The owner/operator shall not remove any naturally occurring vegetation such as trees and shrubs unless it adversely affects the performance and operation of the solar installation.
 - 6. Landscaping shall be maintained and replaced as necessary by the owner/operator of the Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation.
- E. Utility Connections.

Electrical transformers, wires, or other utility interconnections shall be constructed as required by the utility provider and may be above ground if necessary; provided, however, that every reasonable effort shall be made to place all utility connections underground, depending on appropriate soil conditions and topography of the site and any requirements of the utility provider.

- F. All electric power generated at a Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation shall be from Solar Energy.
- G. Access Driveways shall be constructed to minimize finished width, grading, removal of stone walls or roadside trees, incompatible appearance from the roadway, and impacts to environmental or historic resources.

8.10-7 Safety and Environmental Standards

A. Emergency Services

- 1. Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations owner or operator shall provide a copy of the project summary, electrical schematic, and site plan to the Shutesbury Fire Chief.
- 2. The owner or operator shall cooperate with local emergency services to develop a written emergency response plan that is provided to Shutesbury police and fire departments
- 3. All means of shutting down the solar electric installation shall be clearly marked.
- 4. The owner or operator shall identify a responsible person for public inquiries throughout the life of the installation. Contact information shall be provided annually to the Town Administrator include name, email and phone number for the designated person.
- B. Land Clearing, Soil Erosion and Land Impacts
 - The facility shall be designed to minimize impacts to open agricultural land and fields, even if not in production. Clearing of natural vegetation shall be limited to what is necessary for the construction, operation and maintenance of the Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation. Grading that substantially disturbs the existing soil profile and structure is prohibited; sites shall be selected where construction may be accomplished without such earth work.
 - Prior to any site disturbance and construction, the limits of the work shown on the approved site plan shall be surveyed and clearly marked by a Professional Land Surveyor. Upon completion of the survey, the Professional Land Surveyor shall verify to the Planning Board, in writing, that the limit of work, as shown on the approved site plans, has been established on site.
 - 3. The design shall minimize the use of concrete and other impervious materials to the maximum extent possible. Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation shall be installed on water permeable surfaces.
 - 4. Locating Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations, including access driveways and any associated drainage infrastructure on original, pre development grades in excess of 15% is prohibited.
- C. Habitat Impacts

Large-Scale Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations shall not be located on permanently protected land subject to MGL. Ch. 184, §s 31-33 Priority Habitat and Bio Map 2 Critical Natural Landscape Core Habitat mapped by the Natural Heritage and Endangered Species Program (NHESP) and "Important Wildlife Habitat" mapped by the DEP.

- D. Wetlands
 - 1. The applicant will prepare MA DEPWPA Form 4a. Abbreviated Notice of Resource Area Delineation (ANRAD) that includes a wetland evaluation and map of the site. The ANRAD shall also be submitted to the Conservation Commission.

- 2. In order to provide an adequate intervening land area for the infiltration of stormwater runoff from a Solar Electric Installation, ground alterations, such as stump removal, excavation, filling, and grading, or the installation of drainage facilities or solar panels, are prohibited within 100 feet of any wetlands or hydrologic features subject to the jurisdiction of the Shutesbury Conservation Commission.
- 3. The Planning Board may impose conditions to contain and control stormwater runoff that might negatively impact identified wetlands or other hydrologic features even if the proposed work area is outside the jurisdiction of the Conservation Commission.

8.10-8 Monitoring, Maintenance and Reporting

- A. Solar Electric Installation Conditions
 - 1. The Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation owner or operator shall maintain the facility in good condition.
 - 2. Maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, painting, structural repairs, and integrity of security measures.
 - 3. Site access shall be maintained to a level acceptable to the Shutesbury Fire Chief and Emergency Management Director.
 - 4. The owner or operator shall be responsible for the cost of maintaining the Solar Electric Installation and any access driveways.
- B. Annual Reporting
 - The owner or operator of a Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation shall submit an annual report demonstrating and certifying compliance with the Operation and Maintenance Plan, the requirements of this Section 8.9 and the approved special permit, including but not limited to continued management and maintenance of vegetation, compliance with the approved plans and any special permit conditions, continuation of liability insurance, and adequacy of road access.
 - 2. The annual report shall also provide information on the maintenance completed during the course of the year and the amount of electricity generated by the facility.
 - 3. The report shall be submitted to the Select Board, Planning Board, Fire Chief, Emergency Management Director, Building Commissioner, Board of Health and Conservation Commission (if a wetlands permit was issued) no later than 45 days after the end of the calendar year.

8.10-9 Abandonment or Decommissioning

- A. Removal Requirements
 - 1. Any Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation which has reached the end of its useful life, has been abandoned, or taken off line shall be removed.

- 2. The owner or operator shall physically remove the installation no later than 150 days after the date of discontinued operations.
- 3. The owner or operator shall notify the Special Permit Granting Authority by certified mail, of the proposed date of discontinued operations and plans for removal.
- B. Decommissioning shall consist of:
 - 1. Physical removal of all components of the Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation, including but not limited to structures, foundations, equipment, security barriers, and on-site above-ground transmission lines. Associated off-site utility interconnections shall also be removed if no longer needed.
 - 2. Disposal of all solid and hazardous waste in accordance with local, state, and federal waste disposal regulations.
 - Restoration of the site to its natural preexisting condition, including stabilization or revegetation of the site as necessary to minimize erosion. The Special Permit Granting Authority may allow the owner or operator to leave landscaping or designated below-grade foundations and electric lines in order to minimize erosion and disruption to vegetation.
- C. Decommissioning by the Town

If the owner or operator of a Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation fails to remove such installation in accordance with the requirements of this Section 8.9 within 150 days of discontinued operations or abandonment, the Town may enter the property and physically remove the installation at the owner's expense, drawing from the escrow account or upon the bond or other financial surety provided by the applicant.

8.10-10 Lapse of Approval

Any special permit shall automatically lapse if the Large-or Small-Scale Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installation is not installed and functioning within two (2) years of the grant of the special permit or if the installation shall be considered abandoned.

8.11-1 Enforcement

A violation of this Bylaw shall be subject to the enforcement provisions of the Town of Shutesbury Zoning Bylaws, Section 10. 2

**Article 15 passed by greater than 2/3 majority as amended.

Article 16. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to pursuant to General Laws Chapter 268A, Section 21A., to authorize the Municipal Light Plant Board to appoint member Gayle Huntress to the position of Municipal Light Plant Manager.

**Article 16 passed unanimously.

Article 17. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to appropriate the sum of **\$462,792.00** for the MLP Enterprise Fund beginning July 1, 2020 in accordance with the provisions of M.G.L. c.44, sec 53 F ½, amount to be funded from the following sources.

MLP ENTERPRISE FUND C	DPERATING	BUDGET FY2021
Expenses		Notes
Routine network maintenance	\$ 108,500	Annual Maintenance
Truck retainer fee	\$ 12,000	
Insurance	\$ 8,566	Insurance via MIIA with 10K deductible
Backhaul	\$ 30,840	250MB MBI/Backup connection \$850/mo 10GB CrownCastle \$1,750 per month TOTAL = \$30,840
MLP Manager Stipend	\$ 12,000	\$1,000/month
Employment Overhead	\$ 4,000	22% of Mgr.Stipend
Lifeline CAFII Administration	\$ 7,000	\$2K per year flat admin cost plus \$80 for each new recipient application, then \$50 annual renewal for each recipient (estimating not more than 100 applications annually)
Bond fee for poles	\$ 7,000	3K for Ngrid and Verizon; 1K for Eversource
Pole rental	\$ 20,670	\$13.78 x 1500 poles
Essentials Support	\$ 5,995	Annual Maintenance contract with Calix. Provides direct support and emergency electronic equipment replacement.
Electronics Hut Operations	\$ 1,300	HVAC maintenance \$500, Security Monitoring \$300, Building Maintenance \$500.
Electronic Depreciation (Broadband Capital Stabilization)	\$ 37,895	To replace electronics in 7-10 years (router and ONTs included)
Debt Service	\$ 146,495	\$105,675 Payment (interest and principal) due 4/3/2021 on \$883,333 borrowed at 1.25% thru 2025 and 2% thru 2030. \$15,820 interest payment due 8/21/2020 on \$793,000 BAN. \$25,000 additional principal payment.

Electronics Hut Utilities	\$ 5,200	Electricity to power hut (\$3,600), shared propane (\$600, full tank fill), shared generator maintenance (\$1,000). Indirect Costs reimbursed to town.
Accounting	\$ 1,500	Indirect Costs reimbursed to town.
Auditor	\$ 6,200	Indirect Costs reimbursed to town.
Legal	\$ 5,000	Indirect Costs reimbursed to town.
OPERATIONS SUBTOTAL	\$ 420,161	
Extraordinary & Unforeseen	\$ 42,631	Emergency Reserve Fund
OPERATIONS TOTAL	\$ 462,792	
Income		
MLP Fees	\$ 462,792	MLP Fee: Basic= \$52.00/month, Vacation=\$45.00/month. Currently 733 regular subscribers, 10 vacation subscribers, 21 holding subscribers

**Article 17 passed unanimously.

Articles 18-20. A motion was made and seconded that the Town approve Articles 18, 19, and 20, as written in the Warrant, except for the words 'or take any other action relative thereto.

Article 18. To see if the Town of Shutesbury vote to accept and expend funds available from the State for Highway reimbursement programs, such as the Chapter 90 program, without further appropriation.

Article 19. To see if the Town of Shutesbury vote to authorize the Treasurer to enter into compensating balance agreements during Fiscal 2021 as permitted by M.G.L. c. 44, section 53F.

Article 20. To see if the Town of Shutesbury vote to allow the Select Board to apply for, accept and expend state, federal and other grants, which do not require a town appropriation, or take any other action relative thereto.

**Articles 18-20 passed unanimously.

Article 21. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to approve the appointment pursuant to MGL Chapter 268A, Section 21A of Catherine Hilton as a Board of Health Administrative Consultant while also serving as an elected official on the Board of Health.

**Article 21 passed unanimously.

Article 22. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to become a member in the Pioneer Valley Mosquito Control District, pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 252, §5A for the purpose of monitoring and surveillance of mosquitos and other applicable sections of said law; and fund the membership fee of \$5,000 from Free Cash.

**Article 22 passed by majority.

Article 23. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to amend the Revolving Fund bylaw to cancel the SRECS Solar Renewable Energy Certificates revolving fund and return any excess funds to Free Cash.

**Article 23 passed by majority.

Article 24. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to approve annual spending limits for FY2021 for revolving funds established in the Town Bylaws, pursuant to MGL c. 44, sec. 53E1/2, as most recently amended, to (1) authorize revolving funds for certain Town Departments as per the chart below, or take any other action relative thereto.

Revolving fund	FY2021 spending limit
Dog license and control	\$1,000
Recycling	\$25,000
Fire Inspections	\$3,000
Electrical Inspections	\$4,000
Plumbing Inspection	\$5,000
Swimming Exercise	\$3,000
Library	\$10,000
Conservation	\$3,000
SRECS Solar Renewable Energy	
Certificates	\$30,000
COA Seniors	\$ 5,000

**Article 24 passed unanimously.

Article 25. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to approve a transfer from **Free Cash** in the sum of \$7200, for two replacement sliding glass doors in the conference room at the elementary school.

**Article 25 passed by majority.

Article 26. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to approve to transfer from **Free Cash** the sum of \$25,000 for new flooring to include; carpeting in the library and IT Director's office; new carpeting in Tyner and Culbreth's rooms, VCT flooring in Richard's Room, and new VCT in three bathrooms- library, kindergarten and preschool.

**Article 26 passed by majority.

Article 27. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to approve transfer from **Free Cash** the sum of \$2,700, to install two overhead door operators at the fire station.

**Article 27 passed by majority.

Article 28. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to approve a transfer from **Free Cash** of the sum of \$900 for a hand held radar gun and \$1,300 for the purchase portable breathalyzer unit for the Police Dept., for a total of \$2,200.

**Article 28 passed by majority.

Proposed Amended Sign Bylaw

Article 29. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to strike section 8.4 of the Town of Shutesbury Zoning Bylaw and replace it with the following new section 8.4.Section 8.4 Sign Regulations

8.4-1 Purpose

The purpose of sign regulations is to provide for the reasonable control of signs and advertising devices to preserve and enhance the historic appearance, rural character, and scenic amenities of the Town without unduly restricting the conduct of lawful enterprises. These regulations are intended to protect public safety, facilitate effective communication, and promote civic and community vitality without distracting motorists or obstructing visibility and/or clearance.

8.4-2 General Guidelines

A. General Standards

Signs shall fit within the character of the Town of Shutesbury and the abutting properties and uses. Signs shall be appropriate in scale and placement for both the specific site and immediate surrounding area.

B. Sign Dimensions

The area of a sign shall be determined to be the size of the smallest rectangle which will include the entire physical area of the sign. The dimensions of a sign shall be the length multiplied by the width of such a rectangle. The area of the supporting framework shall not be included in the area if such framework is incidental to the display.

The height of a sign shall be measured to the highest point of the sign including any structural or ornamental projections above the sign proper, from the average ground level above which the sign is located.

A two-sided sign that has messages on both sides will be deemed to be one sign. A sign with more than two sides shall be deemed to be multiple signs, one sign for each direction faced.

8.4-3 Permitted Signs

A. Signs Permitted By Right:

The following types of signs are permitted by right:

- 1. <u>Resident Identification</u>. One sign for each family residing on the premises, indicating the name of the premises and the name of the owner or occupant provided such sign does not exceed two (2) square feet in area.
- 2. <u>Accessory Use Identification:</u> One sign, not exceeding eight (8) square feet in area, for a permitted accessory use or home occupation located on the premises.
- Property or Home Construction, Lease or Sale Signs: Signs pertaining to the construction, lease or sale of the premises provided such signs do not exceed twelve (12) square feet in total area
- 4. <u>Personal Property Sale/For Free Signs:</u> Signs indicating the sale or availability of personal property, including those items being offered by a business, charitable or religious organization, provided that such signs do not exceed eight (8) square feet in total area.
- 5. <u>Directional or identification signs</u>: Directional or identification signs where such signs will serve the public and provided that such signs do not exceed eight (8) square feet in total area.
- 6. <u>Community, charitable and religious signs:</u> Signs or bulletin boards not exceeding twenty-four (24) square feet in area in connection with community, charitable or religious uses.
- 7. <u>Opinion, advocacy, and political signs</u>: Non-commercial signs promoting an idea, position, political candidate, or other form of non-commercial expression protected by the United States and Massachusetts Constitutions, provided that such signs do not exceed twenty-four (24) square feet in area.
- 8. <u>Agricultural signs:</u> Signs indicating the sale of agricultural or horticultural products, providing that the signs do not exceed twenty-four (24) square feet in area.
- 9. <u>Commercial signs</u>: Signs for freestanding commercial uses that are not located upon the same lot as a residential use provided that they do not exceed twenty-four (24) square feet in total area.
- 10. <u>Municipal signs</u>: Sign erected by the Town of Shutesbury provided that such signs do not exceed twenty-four (24) square feet in area.

Signs shall be erected on the same lot as the premises, person or activity they are intended to advertise, call attention to or identify; in order to be erected in a location other than the same lot as the premises, person or activity, such signs shall require permission of the other property owner. Signs may also be erected between the lot line of privately owned premises and five (5) feet of the travelled lanes of a public roadway (defined herein as the white line of a paved road, edge of pavement of a paved road without striping, or the outside of the obvious track of the outer tires on an unpaved road).

B. Signs Requiring a Special Permit

Any sign, allowed by right in 8.4-3, Section A that exceeds the specified allowable size or which seeks placement other than specified in this bylaw, shall require a Special Permit from the Zoning Board of Appeals.

8.4-4 Nonconforming Signs

An existing sign which has been erected as of April 25, 2020 but which does not conform to this bylaw may continue to be used. However, if it is replaced, enlarged, redesigned, or materially altered, it shall be brought into conformity with this bylaw.

The Planning Board made a motion and it was seconded to amend 8.4-4 to:

Legally non-confirming signs may continue in use per MGL Chapter 40A, Section 6. However, if it is replaced, enlarged, redesigned, or materially altered, it shall be brought into conformity with this bylaw.

Amendment to 8.4-4 passed by majority.

8.4-5 Sign Restrictions

- <u>Illuminated signs</u>: Signs or other advertising devices may be illuminated, but such illumination shall be external to the sign and shall be either indirect or shielded by translucent material so as to prevent direct glare onto any public street or onto any adjacent property. No exterior sign or interior sign visible from the exterior of the structure shall be illuminated during hours the business is not open, provided, however, that no sign on a residential premise shall be illuminated after 8:00 p.m.
- 2. Signs on Town Property:

Only municipal signs, except signs located between the lot line of privately owned premises and five (5) feet of the travelled lanes of a public roadway, may be placed upon town-owned property including the Town Common, frontage bordering town buildings, parks, recreation, conservation, or watershed area. Municipal signs shall require approval from the Select Board or its designee.

8.4-6 Prohibited Signs or Installation

A. <u>Moving, animated or digital signs</u>: Moving signs, digital signs, swinging signs, changeable message signs, flashing signs, revolving signs, signs consisting of pennants, ribbons, streamers, spinners, strings of light bulbs, revolving beacons, search lights, or animated signs to create the illusion of motions.

- B. <u>Inflatable signs</u>: Free-standing inflatable signs whether animated or stationary.
- C. <u>Billboards</u>: Billboards and roof-mounted signs.
- D. <u>Vehicle signs</u>: Display of advertising painted on or attached to a vehicle, when the primary use of the vehicle is for display rather than transportation, and where the vehicle is usually parked within sight of a public way.
- E. Prohibited Installations
 - 1. Signs erected or displayed so as to endanger public safety. Signs erected that shall in any way create a traffic hazard or in any way obscure, confuse or impair pedestrian or automobile traffic flow or sight. Signs constituting a nuisance or hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic because of intensity or direction of illumination.
 - 2. Signs extending to within five (5) feet of the travelled lanes of a public roadway.
 - 3. Signs higher than ten (10) feet above the natural grade.
 - 4. Signs larger than twenty-four (24) square feet in total area.
 - 5. Signs posted or attached to utility poles.

8.4-7 Enforcement

Signs on Non-Town Property:

Any sign owner or owner of property on which a sign is located who violates, or permits a violation of this Bylaw, except in the situation when a sign is deemed unsafe, shall be subject to the enforcement provisions of the Town of Shutesbury Zoning Bylaws, Section 10.2

If a sign, including those signs located within five (5) feet of the travelled lanes of any public roadway is deemed to be unsafe by the Police Chief or the Highway Department Superintendent in a written statement to the Select Board, the Select Board or its designee may remove the sign upon 24-hour written or verbal notice to the sign owner or owner of the property on which the sign is located. Subsequent actions shall be consistent with aforesaid Section 10.2 regarding enforcement.

Signs on Town Property:

Signs erected on Town property not in compliance with 8.4-5(2) may be removed without notice by the Select Board or its designee. If known, the owner of the sign shall be contacted within 48 hours. The sign shall be stored for a period of two weeks to allow the owner to retrieve the sign, at which time the Select Board or its designee may dispose of the sign.

**Article 29 passed unanimously as amended.

Proposed Amended Open Space Design Bylaw

Article 30. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to strike ARTICLE V, OPEN SPACE DESIGN, of the Town of Shutesbury Zoning Bylaw and replace it with the following new ARTICLE V, OPEN SPACE DESIGN.

ARTICLE V OPEN SPACE DESIGN

SECTION 5.1 PURPOSE AND APPLICABILITY

5.1-1 Purpose

The primary purpose of this Section is to preserve the open space resources of Shutesbury as identified in the Master Plan, especially large contiguous blocks of forested back-land. These large unfragmented tracts provide many ecological benefits. They improve water and air quality, sequester carbon, reduce movement of invasive species, provide wildlife habitat, and support greater biodiversity. Additionally, they help maintain commercial forestry as a viable agricultural activity and offer many recreational opportunities to town residents. This section is also intended to foster compact development patterns using flexible regulations for density and lot dimensions and to promote and encourage creativity in neighborhood design. The Town wishes to encourage the use of Open Space Design because Open Space Design results in the preservation of contiguous open space and important environmental resources, while allowing design flexibility. Open Space Design reduces development impacts on farmland, forests, wildlife habitats, large tracts of contiguous open space, environmentally sensitive areas, steep slopes, hilltops, and historically significant areas. To encourage this type of development, Open Space Design is allowed by right, subject only to the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land. An Open Space Design that does not require approval as a subdivision is allowed by special permit subject to approval by the Planning Board. In order to encourage small subdivisions to follow Open Space Design principles, there is no minimum parcel size or number of lots required for an Open Space Design.

5.1-2 Applicability

- A. An Open Space Design may be proposed anywhere in Shutesbury, including the TC district. Within the FC, RR, and LW District, all subdivisions shall comply with the Open Space Design provisions of this Article V, unless the Planning Board allows a development that deviates from the requirements of Article V by Special Permit. Such deviations may be approved if the applicant demonstrates that the proposed alternative development configuration provides adequate protection of the site's environmental resources and fulfills the purposes of this Article as well as or better than an Open Space Design.
- B. Subsection A above applies only to subdivisions of land as defined in MGL Ch. 41, § 81L, and not to construction of homes or businesses on individual lots that existed prior to May 3, 2008 or to lots created through the "Approval Not Required" process with frontage on public ways existing as such as of May 3, 2008 described in the Regulations for the Subdivision of Land (the "Subdivision Regulations"). However, if subdivision approval is not required because a new roadway is not proposed, an applicant may nevertheless apply for an Open Space Design under this Article V. In such a case, the application shall be subject to special permit review as described in Article IX,

under which the Planning Board may additionally consider the conservation benefits versus detriments of permitting a number of residential units in excess of the base number otherwise possible without the benefit of this Article V. If the proposed Open Space Design also involves one or more common driveways, density bonuses, transfer of development rights, and/or any other use that requires a Special Permit, the proceedings for all such Special Permits and the Site Plan review for the lot configuration shall occur in one consolidated Special Permit proceeding before the Planning Board.

SECTION 5.2 DEVELOPMENT IMPACT STATEMENT AND CONSERVATION ANALYSIS

In order to enable the Planning Board to determine whether or not a proposed Open Space Design (or development by Special Permit that deviates from the requirements for Open Space Design) satisfies the purposes and standards of this Article, an applicant must present sufficient information on the environmental and open space resources for the Board to make such determination. The required information shall be provided in the form of a Development Impact Statement, including a "conservation analysis" as described in Subsection IX of Section VIII of the Subdivision Regulations. In the case of an Open Space Design that is not a subdivision, and that is presented as a special permit application, the applicant shall not be required to submit a full Development Impact Statement. However, the Planning Board may require the submission of all or part of a conservation analysis as described in the Subdivision Regulations.

5.2-1 Conservation Analysis and Findings

- A. Prior to filing an application, an applicant is encouraged to meet with the Planning Board to discuss the conservation resources on the site. At such a meeting, the Planning Board shall indicate to the applicant which land is likely to have the most conservation value and be most important to preserve and where development may be most appropriately located.
- B. In the case of a proposed plan that deviates from the requirements of this Article, if the Planning Board determines that the land with the greatest conservation value cannot be protected except by the use of an Open Space Design plan, the Planning Board shall deny the Special Permit for the deviation and require that the applicant submit a plan that complies with the requirements for an Open Space Design.
- C. The Planning Board, in consultation with the Conservation Commission, and Open Space Committee, if any, shall study the conservation analysis, may conduct field visits, and shall formally determine which land should be preserved and where development may be located. The Planning Board shall make written findings supporting this determination (the "conservation findings"). The Planning Board shall deny any application that does not include sufficient information to make conservation findings or that does not preserve land that the Planning Board determines should be preserved from development as a result of the conservation analysis and findings.
- D. The Planning Board's conservation findings shall be incorporated into its decision to approve, approve with conditions, or deny an application. The conservation findings shall show land to be permanently preserved by a conservation restriction, as well as recommended conservation uses,

ownership, and management guidelines for such land. The conservation findings shall also indicate preferred locations for development if the Plan is denied based upon such findings.

5.2-2 Minimum Preserved Open Space

The Plan shall show that at least the percentages of the total acreage listed below will be preserved by conservation restriction, based upon the conservation findings.

FC District: minimum of 80%

RR, LW, TC Districts: minimum of 65%

SECTION 5.3 ALLOWABLE RESIDENTIAL UNITS

The maximum number of residential units in an Open Space Design is calculated by a formula based upon the net acreage of the property. This formula is intended to take into account site-specific development limitations that make some land less developable than other land. This calculation involves two steps, calculating the net acreage and dividing by the base allowed density.

5.3-1 Net Acreage Calculation

The factors named below are included in this subsection for net acreage calculation purposes only and do not convey or imply any regulatory constraints on development siting that are not contained in other applicable provisions of law, including this zoning bylaw. To determine net acreage, subtract the following from the total (gross) acreage of the site:

- A. half of the acreage of land with slopes of 20% or greater (2000 square feet or more of contiguous sloped area at least 10 feet in width); and
- B. the total acreage of lakes, ponds, land subject to easements or restrictions prohibiting development, FEMA 100-year floodplains, and all freshwater wetlands as defined in Chapter 131, Section 40 of the General Laws, as delineated by an accredited wetlands specialist. The wetlands scientist will prepare MA DEP WPA Form 4A. Abbreviated Notice of Resource Area Delineation (ANRAD) that includes a wetland evaluation and map of the site. The ANRAD is submitted to the Conservation Commission, discussed at a public hearing and a decision is issued on the extent and boundaries of the wetland resource areas.

5.3-2 Unit Count Calculation

To determine the base maximum number of allowable residential dwelling units on the site, divide the net acreage by three (3) in the RR, LW, or TC Districts, or by five (5) in the FC District. Fractional units shall be rounded down to the next whole number.

5.3-3 Density Bonuses

The unit count determined in Section 5.3-2 above may be increased through density bonuses designed to advance important goals of the Shutesbury Master Plan. Density bonuses are given by Special Permit at the discretion of the Planning Board based upon the expected public benefit. They are calculated by first determining the allowable unit count under Section 5.3-2 without rounding fractional units up or down, and then multiplying that number by 100% plus the percentages that follow. Resulting fractional units shall be rounded down as in §5.3-2.

- A. If the applicant allows deeded public access to the open space portion of the property and the Planning Board finds that such public access provides a significant recreational benefit to the Town (such as access to an important natural area or a trail system): a maximum of 10%.
- B. If the applicant permanently restricts ownership and occupancy of units allowed by §5.3-2 as affordable housing (as defined in this bylaw), and makes a binding commitment to construct such affordable residences: a maximum of 25%. For every unit included in the allowable unit count under Section 5.3-2 that is built and dedicated as an affordable unit, two bonus market rate units may be permitted, up to the maximum of 25% of the allowable unit count.
- C. If the applicant preserves as permanent open space more than the minimum required percentage: a maximum 10% density bonus per additional 5% of the whole project area preserved as open space.

5.3-4 Density Transfer (Transfer of Development Rights)

The Town of Shutesbury encourages flexibility in the location and layout of development, within the overall density standards of this Zoning Bylaw. The Town therefore will permit residential density to be transferred from one parcel (the "sending parcel") to another (the "receiving parcel") in Open Space Designs under this Article V. Density transfers may only be permitted from sending parcels in the FC district to receiving parcels in either the FC, RR, or TC districts. If a sending parcel is located in both the FC and another district, only those portions of sending parcel that actually lie within the FC District may be considered in determining the number of units allowed to be transferred. The process of density transfer is as follows:

- A. Procedure
 - 1. All density transfers require a Special Permit from the Planning Board.

2. The Special Permit application for a density transfer shall be signed by the owners (or their authorized representatives) of both the sending and receiving parcels.

3. The Special Permit application shall show a proposed development plan for the receiving parcel (subdivision and/or Site Plan) as well as a base unit count calculation prepared according to the provisions of §5.3.-2. For the sending parcel, the applicant may calculate the allowable number of units eligible to transfer by either:

- a. Calculating the net acreage pursuant to §5.3-1 and dividing by 15; or
- b. Dividing the total (gross) acreage by 25.

Fractional units shall be rounded down to the next whole number.

4. Sending parcels existing as such on May 3, 2008 may have development rights calculated by either method a or b at the applicant's election. Sending parcels which have been modified by lot line changes since May 3, 2008 must employ method a. The density calculation for the sending parcel shall not include any of the density bonuses available under §5.3-3.

5. In reviewing an application for density transfer, the Planning Board shall first determine the number of allowable residential units permitted on the receiving parcel using all of the relevant standards in § 5.3-2 and any density bonuses sought under §5.3-3. The Planning Board shall then determine the number of residential units available to transfer from the sending parcel(s) pursuant to §5.3-4A.3.a. or b.

6. The Planning Board may then grant a Special Permit allowing the transfer to the receiving parcel of some or all of the allowable residential units from the sending parcel(s).

7. As a condition of approval of the density transfer, a conservation restriction on the sending parcel(s) satisfying the requirements of §5.6 shall be executed and recorded in the Registry of Deeds. The conservation restriction shall require that the total area of land used in the calculation required under 5.3-4A.3.a. or b. above be permanently restricted. (For example, if five units are transferred and the calculation is according to §5.3-4A.3.b., at least 125 acres of the sending parcel would have to be permanently restricted.). Those portions of the sending parcel(s) not required to be subject to the conservation restriction may be used in accordance with this zoning bylaw.

B. Findings Required

The Planning Board shall not approve any residential density transfer unless it finds that:

1. All requirements for the granting of a Special Permit have been satisfied.

2. The addition of the transferred units to the receiving parcel will not increase the maximum allowable unit count under §5.3-2 by more than 25%, and will not adversely affect the area surrounding the receiving parcel.

3. The density transfer will benefit the Town by protecting a substantial area of developable land with conservation value on the sending parcel(s) in a manner that furthers the purposes of the FC District.

4. The density transfer will be consistent with the Master Plan.

5.3-5 Maximum Density Bonus and/or Density Transfer

The density bonuses and transfers of development rights allowed in §§5.3-3 and 5.3-4 above may be combined to result in a total unit count increase not exceeding 25% of that established in 5.3-2 above. Density bonuses and/or transfers may only be used if the resulting development complies with Title 5 of the State Environmental Code as determined by the Board of Health.

5.3-6 Lots in More than One District

For lots in more than one district, the allowable unit count (excluding bonuses or transfers) and required open space for each district shall be computed separately first. These totals shall be added together and the allowable maximum bonus and transfer of development rights for the entire development shall be calculated based upon this combined total number of units. The permitted location of the units and protected open space shall be wherever the Planning Board determines best fits the characteristics of the land, based upon the conservation analysis and findings.

SECTION 5.4 TYPES OF RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

The allowable residential units may be developed as single-family, two-family, or multi-family dwellings, provided that applicable Special Permit or Site Plan review requirements for the land use district are satisfied and that the number of dwelling units does not exceed the allowable unit count in Section 5.3 above. The subdivision approval and Special Permit/Site Plan requirements shall be fulfilled concurrently in one proceeding to the extent practical. Any Open Space Design application involving two-family or multi-family dwellings shall include a Site Plan that shows the location, layout, height, and setbacks of such dwellings. Accessory apartments shall be permitted in Open Space Designs and shall not be counted toward the total allowable unit count. Such apartments shall comply with the requirements of Section 4.4-2, except that the requirements of Sections 4.4-2A and 4.4-2B (lot area and setback requirements) shall not apply.

SECTION 5.5 DIMENSIONAL AND DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

5.5-1 Minimum Lot Sizes in Open Space Designs

The limiting factor on lot size in Open Space Designs is the need for adequate water supply and sewage disposal. Therefore, there is no required minimum lot size for zoning purposes. This does not affect the powers of the Board of Health to require areas on a lot for the disposal of sewage and the protection of water supply.

5.5-2 Setbacks, Road Frontage, and Road Requirements

The minimum setback shall be 10 feet from any property line. There shall be no numerical requirements for road frontage in an Open Space Design, provided that each lot has legally and practically adequate vehicular access to a public way or a way approved under the Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land across its own frontage or via a shared driveway approved under Section 8.6. All dwellings must comply with applicable Board of Health requirements. The Planning Board may modify the applicable road construction requirements for new roads within an Open Space Design as provided in the Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land, if it finds that such modifications will be consistent with the purposes of this Article V and the Master Plan.

5.5-3 Arrangement of Lots

A. Lots shall be located and arranged in a manner that protects: views from roads and other publicly

accessible points; farmland; wildlife habitat; large intact forest areas; hilltops; ponds; steep slopes; and other sensitive environmental resources, while facilitating pedestrian circulation. Generally, residential lots shall be located the minimum feasible distance from existing public roadways. The Planning Board shall take into consideration the conservation analysis and findings in approving the arrangement of lots.

B. Lot, roadway, and driveway layouts, land alterations, and placement of structures shall follow applicable portions of the Rural Siting Principles in Section 8.3 and any design guidelines for Open Space Design which may be adopted by the Planning Board.

SECTION 5.6 PERMANENT OPEN SPACE

Open space set aside in an Open Space Design or as a condition of any Special Permit or Site Plan approval (see Article IX) shall be configured as a separate parcel(s) from any building lots and permanently preserved from development as required by this Section 5.6. The Planning Board may not require such open space land to be accessible to the public, unless a density bonus is allowed under Subsection 5.3-3A. Any development permitted in connection with the setting aside of open space land shall not compromise the conservation value of such open space land, based upon the conservation findings of the Planning Board.

5.6-1 Permanent Preservation of Open Space Land

All land required to be set aside as open space in connection with any Open Space Design shall be so noted on any approved plans and shall be protected from development by a permanent conservation restriction, as defined in Article XIII, to be held by the Town of Shutesbury, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or a non-profit conservation organization qualified to hold conservation restrictions under G.L. Chapter 184, Section 31, and also qualified to hold tax-deductible conservation easements under Section 170(h) of the Internal Revenue Code, or by other means acceptable to the Planning Board that achieve the conservation goals of this section. Such means may include recorded easements under earlier sections of Chapter 184, recorded zoning or subdivision conditions, or ownership by a conservation organization as described above. The restriction shall specify the permitted uses of the restricted land which may otherwise constitute development. The restriction may permit, but the Planning Board may not require public access or access by residents of the development to the protected open space land.

A. Ownership of Open Space Land

1. Protected open space land may be held in private ownership, owned in common by a homeowner's association (HOA), dedicated to the Town or State governments with their consent, transferred to a non-profit organization acceptable to the Planning Board, or held in such other form of ownership as the Planning Board finds appropriate to manage the open space land and protect its conservation value.

2. If the land is owned in common by an HOA, such HOA shall be established in accordance with the following:

a. The HOA must be created before final approval of the development, and must comply with all applicable provisions of state law.

b. Membership must be mandatory for each lot owner, who must be required by recorded covenants and restrictions to pay fees to the HOA for taxes, insurance, and maintenance of common open space, private roads, and other common facilities.

c. The HOA must be responsible for liability insurance, property taxes, the maintenance of recreational and other facilities, private roads, and any shared driveways.

d. Property owners must pay their pro rata share of the costs in Subsection c above, and the assessment levied by the HOA must be able to become a lien on the property.

e. The HOA must be able to adjust the assessment to meet changed needs.

f. The applicant shall make a conditional offer of dedication to the Town, binding upon the HOA, for all open space to be conveyed to the HOA. Such offer may be accepted by the Town, at the discretion of the Board of Selectmen, upon the failure of the HOA to take title to the open space from the applicant or other current owner, upon dissolution of the association at any future time, or upon failure of the HOA to fulfill its maintenance obligations hereunder or to pay its real property taxes.

g. Ownership shall be structured in such a manner that real property taxing authorities may satisfy property tax claims against the open space lands by proceeding against individual owners in the HOA and the dwelling units they each own.

h. Town Counsel shall find that the HOA documents presented satisfy the conditions in Subsections a through g above, and such other conditions as the Planning Board shall deem necessary.

B. Maintenance Standards

1. Ongoing maintenance standards shall be established as a condition of development approval to ensure that the open space land is not used for storage or dumping of refuse, junk, or other offensive or hazardous materials. Such standards shall be enforceable by the Town against any owner of open space land, including an HOA.

2. If the Board of Selectmen finds that the provisions of Subsection 1 above are being violated to the extent that the condition of the land constitutes a public nuisance, it may, upon 30 days written notice to the owner, enter the premises for necessary maintenance, and the cost of such maintenance by the Town shall be assessed ratably against the landowner or, in the case of an HOA, the owners of properties within the development, and shall, if unpaid, become a property tax lien on such property or properties.

**Article 30 passed by majority.

Article 31. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to accept the provisions of M.G. L. Chapter 64G sec. 3A, which would allow the town to impose a local excise tax upon the transfer of occupancy of a room in a bed and breakfast establishment, lodging house or short-term rental by an operator at rate of not more than six (6) per cent of the total of rent for

each such occupancy, with this section to take effect on the first day of the calendar quarter following 30 days after its acceptance.

**Article 31 passed by majority.

Article 32. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to pursuant to the provisions of M.G. L. Chapter 64G sec. 3A, to impose a six (6) per cent excise tax upon the total of rent for each transfer of occupancy of a room in a bed and breakfast establishment, lodging house or short-term rental by an operator, or take any other action in relation thereto.

**Article 32 passed by majority.

CPA Bylaw Amendment

Article 33. A motion was made and seconded that the Town of Shutesbury vote to strike the Town of Shutesbury Community Preservation Bylaw and replace it with the following new bylaw.

Town of Shutesbury Community Preservation Bylaw (Update: 2020)

Chapter 1: Establishment and Role

The Town of Shutesbury hereby establishes a Community Preservation Committee. The Community Preservation Committee is responsible for evaluating the community preservation needs of the town and making recommendations to Town Meeting as part of the annual budget process. It is responsible for developing a Community Preservation Plan and presenting an annual community preservation budget to Town Meeting.

Chapter 2: Membership

The Community Preservation Committee shall consist of seven (7) voting members pursuant to MGL Chapter 44B, Section 5. Members shall serve a one-year term which may be renewed with no limitation.

The Select Board shall appoint the members of the committee as follows:

- One member of the Conservation Commission as designated by the Commission
- One member of the Historical Commission as designated by the Commission
- One member of the Planning Board as designated by the Board
- One member to act in the capacity of, or perform like duties of, a member of a housing authority representing the interests of affordable housing in the Town of Shutesbury
- One member of the Select Board or its designee, to act in the capacity of, or perform the duties of the Board of Park Commissioners

- One member of the Open Space or Recreation Committees, as designated by either Committee
- One At-large member

Should any of the Commissions, Boards, Councils or Committees who have authority to designate under this Chapter not exist in the Town of Shutesbury or no longer be in existence for whatever reason, the designation authority for that Commission, Board, Council, or Committee shall become the responsibility of the Select Board.

Should any designating authority fail to make their designation by the beginning of the fiscal year, the Select Board may make the appointment.

Chapter 3: Requirement for a quorum and committee action The Community Preservation Committee shall not conduct business without the presence of a quorum. A majority of the currently appointed members of the committee shall constitute a quorum.

The Community Preservation Committee shall approve its actions by a majority of the members present.

**Article 33 passed unanimously.

**A motion was made, seconded and unanimously passed to dissolve the meeting at 2:30 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Susie Mosher, Shutesbury Town Clerk	
A true copy. Attest	

Appendix A

Annual Town Meeting Reports from Committees

Board of Health Broadband Committee/MLP Board M.N.Spear Memorial Library Planning Board Record Storage Advisory Committee Recycling and Solid Waste Committee Regional School Committee School Committee Shutesbury Elementary School Finance Committee

Shutesbury Board of Health Report to Annual Town Meeting – 06/27/2020

Obviously, the novel coronavirus now devastating the entire world has been a major concern ofthe Board of Health for several months, almost to the exclusion of all else. On March 2, some members of the board and other town officials participated in a large tabletop exercise involving all the Emergency Dispensing Site teams of the Mohawk Area Public Health Coalition, the scenario of which was an epidemic of a novel influenza. As states of emergency were declared and in-person meetings gave way to virtual ones, we reviewed the procedures for isolation and quarantine and adopted weekly meetings until the end of June. Anticipating the eventual development of a vaccine, we took inventory of supplies needed to stand up an Emergency Dispensing Site and began to develop a plan for a drive-through EDS.

With financial assistance from the Department of Public Health, we have begun to buy supplies and equipment for this purpose; nevertheless, many uncertainties about the near future have led us, once again, to decide against holding a flu clinic in the fall. Some less urgent activities, such as the semi-annual water testing day, were put on hold. Much of our time was and is spent in keeping informed on the evolving situation through call-ins, webinars, and virtual meetings of other public-health entities; and much more is spent in dispensing information, both through general town-wide messaging and consultations with town boards, with representatives of the library, the church, the Post Office, the Lake Wyola Association, and other citizens with questions or concerns. We are in the process of taking a significant role in making this most unusual of Annual Town Meetings as safe as we can make it. Thus far, our town has been fortunate in having very few confirmed cases; the board has had little to do in case investigation and contact tracing. Lack of crowding has played its part, but much credit must go to our very sensible citizens. Until the global pandemic came on the scene, this board's primary public health concerns had to do with insect-borne diseases, and we have not forgotten these very real concerns. Warning signs about tick-borne illnesses, such as Lyme Disease, have now been installed at several trailheads throughout town, and more are awaiting installation. The board strongly supports joining the Pioneer Valley Mosquito Control District, which requires a vote by Town Meeting; we have sought, and received, approval from the Finance Committee for the initial funding. We cannot emphasize enough that by joining the PVMCD we are not entering into a contract for spraying pesticides. On the contrary, the PVMCD's role is the collection of data – the location and identification of mosquitoes that carry such deadly diseases as West Nile Virus and Eastern Equine Encephalitis. Should disease-bearing mosquitoes be found, the PVMCD can advise us on the most environmentally responsible way of responding to this threat to the public health. We are absolutely convinced that this is the best way to avoid the necessity of spraying pesticides.

Respectfully submitted,

Ken Rotondi, Chair; Catherine Hilton, clerk; Norene Pease, Arleen Read, Al Werner, members.

Broadband Committee/MLP Board - June 2020 Report

In January we were just installing broadband to the last homes in Shutesbury when the first reports of Covid19 started coming in from China. Within three months it was apparent that broadband service was even more critical than we had anticipated to facilitate education, work and livelihood, health, information and social connections.

With so many people using the network it's been a great test of its overall capacity and we're happy to report that the network has performed beautifully. Even during peak usage we have more than enough bandwidth and during recent widespread power outages the network stayed active. We have generators to run all the equipment and constant system monitoring and redundancy to make sure this critical service is available whenever residents need it.

Broadband does have an item on the Town Meeting warrant to approve our enterprise fund annual budget. An enterprise fund is budget-within-a-budget and is designed to manage the finances of any special municipal services which charges a fee to users. Broadband is different from other town departments because it generates its own revenue.

Thanks to our 87% take rate of Shutesbury households using the service, we have enough money in our budget to not only operate sustainably but also to pay the town back for construction debt with no impact on taxes. You will notice the debt service line in our annual budget to do this. There is a second and final portion of construction debt that we will need to decide how to handle next year when that loan is due. But the first half of the incurred debt will be paid using subscriber fees so it does not impact taxes.

You may notice the second largest line item in our budget is for maintenance and upkeep. This is a projected estimate of what we will need to pay for maintenance and repairs using available data from similar networks. We do carry insurance on all the lines and equipment, but a very large ice storm, hurricane, wind storm or other event could cause tens of thousands worth of damage - in addition to the everyday repairs that a network needs. This is why the maintenance

budget is a big portion of the budget; we want to make sure we have enough to handle any unexpected network needs without raising your monthly subscriber rates.

At the end of the fiscal year if there is money left over from our projected budget it will go into an earned revenue account in our enterprise fund that is designed to manage excess funds. We can then use these funds for emergency maintenance reserves, system upgrades or to lower rates. Any excess revenue earned from broadband fees cannot be used for non-broadband purposes, such as to buy a fire truck or support town's general funds. This is state law regarding enterprise fund operations.

There is lots of great information and answers to common questions posted on our website. <u>https://www.shutesbury.org/broadband/faq.</u> If you have questions or concerns please contact us at broadband@shutesbury.org.

Thanks for your continued support of our very own ShutesburyNET municipal broadband network.

Gayle Huntress

Town of Shutesbury Municipal Light Plant Manager 413.887.8505 <u>broadband@shutesbury.org</u>

M.N. Spear Memorial Library Report for Town Meeting, June 27, 2020 Operating Budget Fiscal Year 19

Town appropriated budget:	\$73,981
Dog tax appropriation:	\$1,660
Additional funding from the following:	\$27,051

- Spear Expendable Trust
- The Friends of the M.N. Spear Memorial Library
- The Shutesbury Cultural Council
- The Community Network for Children
- The New Salem Academy
- The Council on Aging
- State Aid to Public Libraries

Total:

\$102,692

Return on investment

Circulation Fiscal Year 19 Total circulation: 37,061 items

In FY 19 Library users borrowed 8,409 children's books from the Library, a retail value of \$84,090.

Library users also borrowed 6,579 adult books, a retail value of \$131,580.

In FY 19, the Library offered 256 programs with 3,059 participants. The value of these free programs compared to the average cost of a movie ticket is \$27,531.

Number of Library Card Holders

1,305 Shutesbury residents have library cards, 72% of the Town's population.

Saving for a new Shutesbury Library

Since 2012, the Trustees and Friends of the Library have been raising and saving for a future new library project.

Total	\$423,404.57
Town Meeting appropriated funds	\$202,700.00
Privately raised funds	\$220,704.57

This total has been growing steadily every year. At Town Meeting last year, we reported the following:

Privately raised funds	\$205,117
Town Meeting appropriated funds	\$177,700

The Library's response to COVID-19

On Thursday, March 12, 2020, the Library cancelled all programming. On Tuesday, March 17, 2020, the Library was closed to the public.

The Library building is closed but Library services continue.

Programs

By the first week of April, the Library had created a Zoom account and began offering weekly online programs including ukulele lessons and fitness classes. The Library has also installed StoryWalks© on the Town Common and in the field behind Town Hall giving families a local destination for a safe socially distanced activity. The stories have been changed regularly and will continue through October.

Instead of in-person Summer Reading Programs, the Library is creating "take-home kits" for children and families.

Online resources

The Library promoted and expanded its online resources, including digital books available through Overdrive, and digital video through Kanopy and Hoopla. On April 1, 2020, a new digital video platform, Acorn TV, was added to the Library's online offerings.

Use of Overdrive, often via an app called Libby, has increased 26%.

Digital streaming has more than doubled, largely due to the addition of Acorn TV.

Curbside pickup

With the exception of a brief period, the Library's physical collection has been available to Shutesbury library users through curbside pickup. Inter-library loan was suspended on March 17^{th,} limiting availability to items in the Spear Library collection. Occasionally the Library director has been able to arrange to have volunteers pick up items from other libraries such as large print books and children's books to enhance the small local collection. Inter-library delivery resumed on June 22, 2020. Inter-library loan will be slow and inconsistent as libraries across the state work through the backlog.

Senior Mobile Nutrition Program

The Library has partnered with the Council on Aging and the Amherst Survival Center to provide a free monthly delivery of food to Shutesbury Seniors in need. The first delivery is scheduled for July 1, 2020. For more information, contact the library director, 259-1213 or library.director2shutesbury.org or JoAnn at 259-1235.

Planning for reopening

The Library director and Library Trustees are developing a reopening plan in accordance with guidance from Governor Baker and the Board of Health.

Planning Board Report on Three Zoning Articles (June 27, 2020 Shutesbury Annual Town Meeting)

All three zoning articles were developed and are sponsored by the Planning Board. The Planning Board, after holding a public hearing on June 22, 2020, recommends passage of the articles, as follows:

Article #15 – Proposed Amended Solar Bylaw

With four Major Ground-Mounted Solar Electric Installations soon to be proposed in Shutesbury, the Planning Board seeks to amend its existing solar bylaw to ensure the Town has adequate control through the special permitting process.

- The purposes section adds emphasis to the protection of large blocks of forest land for their ecological and other natural resource benefits as stated in the Master Plan.
- Commercial forestry is prohibited on the land required for carbon sequestration (for the life of the project).
- The wildflower meadow currently required in and around the solar panels designed to be better habitat for pollinators.
- Protection of historic resources and properties is improved.
- Construction access is required to be from more suitable paved roads, or from unpaved roads with a Planning Board approved waiver, with concurrence from Select Board. (To improve the language now in the warrant, Planning Board will seek a floor amendment to strike and replace Section 8.10-3, H.)
- Lots for solar installations must meet the Town's road frontage requirements.

- A maximum of 9 Major Ground-Mounted Solar Installations is set town wide (with a map showing where).
- Added special permit criteria to include minimization of "incompatible appearance from the roadway."
- To determine location of wetland resources on the site, applicants shall use DEP's standard method Abbreviated Notice of Resource Area Delineation (ANRAD).
- Ground alterations, drainage facilities, and solar panels must be located over 100 feet from wetlands or hydrologic features.

Article #29 – Proposed Amended Sign Bylaw

Given that the sign bylaw has not been substantively updated in approximately 25 years, a Planning Board review uncovered opportunities to amend the existing sign bylaw to bring it into legal compliance, create more flexibility for signs on private property, and establish regulations for signs on public property.

- Allows commercial signs by right (currently limited to agricultural or horticultural).
- Allow signs off premises with approval of the other land owner (currently not allowed).
- Eliminates the temporary sign category to comply with the 2015 Supreme Court ruling in Reed v. Town of Gilbert; expands other categorical uses of signs.
- Expands allowed sign size for retail/consumer commercial and accessory signs.
- Establishes distance regulation that will allow signs to be 5 feet from a road's "travelled lane," even in town-owned right of way.
- Creates regulations regarding signs on town property.
- Establishes safety considerations as a factor for sign location.
- Establishes an 8:00 PM limit for illuminated signs.

Article #30 – Proposed Amended Open Space Design Bylaw

Based on the Planning Board's experience with this bylaw since 2008, and statewide improvements to this class of bylaws, the Planning Board seeks to amend the existing bylaw to bring it into synch with current best practices.

- • Purposes section better emphasizes ecologic benefits of protected open space.
- • For an improved review process, require a special permit instead of site plan review for proposed developments that are not subdivisions.
- For these non-subdivision developments, allow Planning Board to assess the conservation benefits versus detriments of permitting a greater number of dwelling units than would otherwise be possible.
- • To make more consistent with accepted zoning practice, round fractional units down instead of up.
- • Clarify that proposed percentage increases in open space are based on whole parcel area.
- • Stipulates that open space must be configured as separate parcels from the building lots.
- • To provide other acceptable forms of open space preservation in the event a Conservation Restriction is not feasible.

Record Storage Advisory Committee

On 10/16/19 The Record Storage Advisory Committee reported its findings to the Select Board after two years of research and discussion. Currently our town's records are being stored under conditions that make them inaccessible, likely to deteriorate and mold, and take up much needed office space. We were prepared to bring photographs to this Town Meeting to illustrate the problems with record storage in Shutesbury.

The committee created a chart of possibilities and measured them according to record storage criteria. While we did not recommend a specific solution, the report, as a result of our investigation and discussion, provides a starting place for informed discussion and investment in our stewardship of Shutesbury's records. The report and chart can be found on the Record Storage Advisory Committee's web page: https://www.shutesbury.org/node/1431

Respectfully,

Susie Mosher - Chair of the Record Storage Advisory Committee

Recycling and Solid Waste Committee Report June 2020

This has been quite a year for the RSWC. We received a \$500 grant from the Mass Department of Environmental Protection. We will receive another \$500 grant this year, and we also hope to receive a larger Rewards Dividend Program grant which could be as much as \$1,500 from the DEP, which is always welcome. We also participated in the negotiations for a new contract with the Materials Recovery Facility (MRF) in Springfield, where our recyclables go, and worked with a group of municipalities to negotiate a new contract with Community Eco Power (formerly Covanta) where our trash will go. Both these contracts will take effect on July 1st.

Due to poor markets for recyclables internationally, for the first time ever the Town will be charged to process recyclables. Our region's ability to market recyclables internationally has fallen, but it is anticipated that domestic markets will slowly increase reuse of recycled materials, which will eventually reduce recycling disposal costs to the Town. It is still absolutely in the Town's best interests to continue recycling.

Our biggest challenge was devising a protocol for distributing trash bags that kept both RSWC members and Shutesbury residents safe from the coronavirus. We came up with a plan that was pretty elaborate – requiring two volunteers at every distribution date, but it has worked well and everyone stayed safe. We were able to use a new shed for RSWC use, which helped make the delivery of bags safer for all.

Unfortunately, we had to cancel Bulky Waste Day for the first time because of the pandemic, but our collaborative agreement with Leverett that allows Shutesbury residents to use the Leverett Transfer Station has been a great success. Although the pandemic has also kept the swap shops at the LTS closed, Shutesbury folks have been able to dispose of bulky waste there. The RSWC had a booth at Celebrate Shutesbury, and had great fun testing and educating residents on their recycling knowledge. Clarification regarding what is recyclable, LTS stickers, bag distribution dates, trash and recycling pick up schedules, the recycling quiz, and lots more information is available on the RSWC webpage: https://www.shutesbury.org/recycling

The Recycling and Solid Waste Committee

Gary Bernhard - Recycling Coordinator, Meryl Mandell – Chair, Ron Essig, Gail Fleischaker, Ezzell Floranina, Marla Killough, Liz Lacy, Sue Quigley, Steve Rice, Peg Ross

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE AMHERST-PELHAM REGIONAL SCHOOLS HIGHLIGHTS 2019-2020

Due to the COVID-19 global pandemic, 2019-2020 was a school year like no other. What began as a presumed two-week school closure on March 16 evolved into a full school closure for the remainder of the year. Despite the challenges of implementing distance learning with no prior notice or planning, we were committed to maintaining the core mission of the Amherst-Pelham Regional Schools to "provide all students with a high-quality education that enables them to be contributing members of a multiethnic, multicultural, pluralistic society." To that end, I am pleased to share the following highlights:

□ Following a national search, Amherst Regional High School welcomed Gene Jones, the new permanent Principal, this year. In addition, Victoria Stewart was hired as the new Athletic Director and Michael Gallo-O'Connell joined the district as the new Food Services Director. Overall, there were 40 new staff members hired by ARPS this year, with 18 of them (45%) identifying as persons of color. That percentage matches the diversity of the district's students exactly, which is the first time the district has achieved this important goal.

□ The new mathematics curriculum for grades 6-12 was successfully implemented this year. The district now uses Open Up Resources for grades 6-8 and CPM for grades 7-12.

□ With Governor Baker's ban on vaping in September, the district offered multiple opportunities for students and families to learn more about the dangers of vaping as well as ways to support students who were addicted to this extremely harmful habit.

□ The Grade Span Advisory Committee completed their work of reviewing the feasibility of moving sixth grade to the ARMS building in January.

□ On November 5, the district had a full program of 29 workshops related to diversity, equity, and social

□ justice that included all district employee groups. It included keynote speaker Elijah Oyenuga who spoke about matters related to making our schools welcoming and supportive to transgender students.

□ For the first time this year, ARPS was excited to recognize our students for their bilingualism and biliteracy by awarding the MA State Seal of Biliteracy and Biliteracy Pathway Awards. Students who earn these awards demonstrate high levels of proficiency in English and a partner language. Four students earned the Biliteracy Achievement Award, two earned the Massachusetts State Seal of Biliteracy, six earned the Massachusetts States Seal of Biliteracy with Distinction, and two students were chosen for a \$1500 Seal of Biliteracy Scholarship Award based on their academic achievement, community service and overall growth as a student.

□ The ARHS Volleyball, Boys Soccer, Boys Cross Country, Girls Cross Country, Field Hockey, Football and Golf teams all made it to post-season play this year with outstanding individual

and team performances. The Hurricanes football team went all the way to the state championship, playing the championship game in Gillette Stadium.

□ Once schools closed in March, the district implemented distance learning based on DESE guidance, necessitating that students have access to the appropriate technology in order to access lessons. The District distributed more than 400 Chromebooks, as well as internet hotspots for students who did not have internet access. Special thanks to the district PGOs for their incredible fundraising efforts to support purchase of the hotspots.

□ Students who are transitioning from elementary to middle school and from middle to high school were unable to visit their new schools as usual this year. The ARMS and ARHS principals worked with the IT Department to develop virtual tours of each school in order to provide students with the opportunity to learn about the schools they will be attending in the fall.

Finally, congratulations to the 14 graduates from Shutesbury in the class of 2020:
Kalesiah Bushell
Mary Carlson-Belanger
Acadia Case
Cody Cousland
Henry Foster
Violeta Foster
Noah Johansson
Noelle Karlovich
Sofia McNerney
Austin Paczkowski
Ian Saporito
Elijah Shersnow
Aidan Thomas-Paquin
Guokai Xu

Shutesbury School Committee Report — Town Meeting, June 27, 2020

The 2019-2020 school year brought unexpected challenges for Shutesbury Elementary School, but the School Committee is proud of the response of our staff and administrators. When schools closed in March, teachers and paraprofessionals quickly switched to teaching in a new way, with some unfamiliar tools and uncertain expectations. The custodial staff cleaned and sterilized the building. The food service staff provided meals for our community. The staff worked tirelessly to meet the needs of kids and families while adjusting to changes in their own lives. As we move forward towards fall, many questions remain. As of this writing, the state has yet to outline the options for instruction. We do know that there is likely to be considerably less funding from the state for which Principal Mendonsa, Director of Finance Turner, and Superintendent Culkeen are already planning. We also know that there will be a need for purchasing protective equipment such as masks and gloves. Mr. Turner has been working with other communities to try to buy these items in bulk to save money. There may be changes in

transportation costs as the number of students allowed on the buses will be limited. There may also be technology needs as we work to ensure access to remote learning for all families.

In response to the increase in costs and decrease in funding, our Union 28 Central Office has made concerted efforts to reduce the expenses of that office. The Central Office staff has offered to forego their Cost of Living Adjustments. They have also decided to disband the office, housing staff at the various schools. This change will save Union 28 approximately \$10,000 in rent, insurance, and cleaning costs. The Shutesbury School Committee appreciates their willingness to share the financial burden of this crisis and their creativity in finding ways to save. Shutesbury Elementary School is a school that provides for the emotional, social, and educational needs of the children. The Shutesbury School Committee works hard to balance the educational needs of our students and the financial needs of our town. As always, we thank you for your support.



Shutesbury Elementary School

23 West Pelham Road, Shutesbury, MA 01072 Phone: (413) 259-1212 Fax: (413) 259-1531



Shutesbury Elementary School FY 20

Shutesbury Elementary School continues to be a joyful, creative and exceptional elementary school. Lots of information and communication (including our remote learning plan and website) can be found on our school website <u>www.shutesburyschool.org</u>.

Remote Learning

Between March 13 and June 12, 2020, Shutesbury Elementary School operated remotely/virtually. SES teachers went above and beyond to connect with students and families and provide daily meaningful and engaging lessons and assignments. These lessons and assignments included virtual meets, recorded videos, written and video assignments, phone calls, and even letter writing. SES worked to loan technology to students who needed it to access curriculum and learning. We created a stellar food program to support students and families during the remote learning time at home.

The school conducted several surveys during this time to assess needs and gather feedback. We also spent a lot of time planning to support students and families in learning in the coming year. SES will institute a 1:1 technology device program in the fall. Students will be assigned and will travel to and from school with a technology device that will help and support learning at home and in school.

Shutesbury Elementary School assures that all programs, activities and employment opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, gender, gender identity, age, creed, homelessness, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, disability and pregnancy or pregnancy related conditions.

Shutesbury FY 21 Budget Expenses and Revenue Sources

Expenses		
Total budget expenses:	6,601,165	
		* Estimated Tax rate:
Revenue Sources		Total levy / assessed valuation * 1000
Residential taxes *	\$4,792,497	\$5,057,497 / \$223,454,454 = \$22.63
Commercial, Industrial and Personal		(current rate \$24.04)
Property taxes	\$225,000	
Local Receipts (Excise tax, court fees, etc.)	\$253,153	** State aid: Estimated reduction of 30%
PILOT (Payment In Lieu of Taxes DCR, ToA)	\$351,000	
Estimated State aid **	\$482,732	*** FY 20 free cash applied to Reduce
Free Cash (cash reserves) ***	\$476,357	Taxes and Cover Loss in State Aid
WPAT Septic Betterment Loan	<u>\$ 20,425</u>	One time use of free cash to give tax relief
Total Revenues	\$6,601,164	101101





We have prepared a balanced budget for FY21

1. Significant Operating Increases and Decreases Compared to the FY20 Budget:

- A. Total Budget Increase: \$11,781
- B. Elementary School: \$21,362 budget Increase
- C. Elementary Transportation (regional bus contract): \$21,583 budget Increase
- D. Health Insurance: \$30,059 Budget Increase
- E. Town Employees Salary (excluding schools): \$17,294 Increase

- F. Retirement County: \$10,829 increase
- G. Regional School: Level funded regional budget from FY20, the change in assessment method moving closer to Statutory at 45%, created a \$99,771 Decrease for Shutesbury
- H. Transfer to the Unemployment fund of \$15,000 from Free Cash

2. Larger Projected Revenue Increases/Decreases:

A. Net Tax Levy Used in FY21 Budget:

- Tax Levy 2.5% increase: \$135,797 1)
- 2) Portion of Tax Levy increase not used for FY21 budget: \$119,661
- Increase to Added to Excess Levy Capacity: \$367,338 3)
- B. New Growth including Solar PILOT: \$119,661
- C. State Aid: Anticipated 30% Decrease, minus \$ 256,357 to be covered by free cash
- D. Total Projected Annual Tax Decrease of \$350 on average home of \$242,448.

3. Cash Reserves Summary, beginning balances

- A. Free Cash (as of 7/1/2019) \$1,389,680
- B. Capital Stabilization: \$239,002
- C. Stabilization: \$269,431

4. Finance Committee FY21 warrant article capital expenses recommended:

- \$ 37.100 A. Funded from Free Cash:
 - Elementary floors \$ 25,000 1) Elementary - conf room doors \$ 7,200
 - 2) 3) Police - radar gun, breathalyzer
 - \$ 2,200
 - Fire Dept door openers \$ 2,700 4)

B. Addition to Reserves from Project and Revolving Fund Returns:

- Fund 30 transfers \$ 95,644 1)
- \$ 54,423 2) SREC account closure

5. Cash Reserves if all warrant articles pass (Section 4 above):

A. Free Cash \$ 1,083,863 \$351,697 B. Capital Stabilization: C. Stabilization: \$ 282,299

6. Upcoming Capital Projects -

- A. Culvert on Locks Pond Road (by dam), \$500,000 grant received Additional funds needed to complete the project \$500,000
- B. Elementary school roof grant funding denied \$1,000000
- C. Paving School \$50,000
- D. Capital Plan Upcoming Needs, dump truck, police cruiser, backhoe, and fire vehicle

7. OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefits) Trust Fund

- A. Actuarial liability: \$2,300,000
- B. Saved so far: \$595,505 before FY21 funding
- C. Annual funding from operating budget: \$50,000
- D. State gives towns 30 years to fund their liability
- 8. Thoughts on the future

- A. Continued maintenance to 40+ year old school building
- B. Storage of Public Records/Need for Additional Space
- C. Grant funding to add to the Library Building Fund
- D. Invest in projects that reduce operating costs (i.e. solar photovoltaic systems)
- E. School costs:
 - Elementary and Regional school Covid-19 requirements are unknown, but they definitely will increase expenses. The town has been designated to receive up to \$156,410 of Cares Act money, on a reimbursement basis. We have requested reimbursement of \$9,001 to date. The town will work with the elementary and regional to help support their expenditures for Covid-19 related items and services.
 - 2) Ongoing loss of grant funds for early childhood education.
 - 3) Towns in region unable to agree on a long-term school budget assessment allocation method
 - 4) The region's health insurance costs